Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Health, Schools and Care Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Thursday, 8th July, 2021
6.00 pm.
Training and Conference Suite, First Floor,
Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Minutes

3-4

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Health Overview and
Scrutiny Committee held on 18 February 2021.
2

Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work
Programme 2021/2022
To consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2021/2022

3

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

4

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5

Locality Construct Update
Director of Commissioning to provide a presentation

5-7

6

Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2020-21:
Quarter 4 Performance Update
To consider the quarter 4 updates from 2020/21

7

Exclusion of Press and Public
To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public
interest would not be served in publishing the information.

8

Link4Life Partnership Agreement Update and Contract Extension
Assistant Director (Commissioning) to report.

Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor Patricia Mary Dale
Councillor Irene Davidson
Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor Janet Emsley
Councillor Iram Faisal
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Kieran Heakin
John Mcgrath
Councillor Amna Mir
Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
For more information about this meeting, please contact
Peter Thompson
Committees and Constitutional Services
Rochdale Borough Council
Telephone – 01706 924715
E –mail – peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk

8 - 38

Agenda
ItemPack
2
Public
Document
HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 18th February 2021
PRESENT: Councillor Dutton (in the Chair); Councillors Sultan Ali, Dale,
Davidson, Gartside, Hartley, Massey and Sullivan and Mr. J. McGrath (Coopted Member).
OFFICERS: J. Hallsall (Assistant Director – Children’s Services Directorate),
T. Harrison (Assistant Director (Adult Care Services Directorate), F. Davies
(Children’s Services Directorate) and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate).
51

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors McCarthy and Susan
Smith and K. Jones (HealthWatch Rochdale).

52

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interests.

53

MINUTES
Resolved:
That the Minutes held 19th November be approved as a correct record.

54

1ST & 2ND QUARTER SOCIAL CARE COMPLAINTS
The Directors of Children’s Services and Adult Services presented a report
that provided Members with a summary of Adult and Children’s Social Care
complaints received during the first and second quarter periods of 2020/2021
(April – September 2020).
Social care complaints were subject to a statutory reporting framework which
were scrutinised by the Care Quality Commission. The Council’s Customer
Feedback Team had extracted and reported on the information recorded for
social care services during the study period, including the number of
complaints received at each stage of the process, the numbers of complaints
that were investigated and responded to within the permitted timescale and
the numbers that were upheld.
Resolved:
That the report be noted.

55

ADULT, CHILDREN & PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE PLANS 2020-21:
QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE UPDATE
The Committee scrutinised a report detailing progress during the third quarter
2020/2021 (1st October – 31st December) towards the achievement of the
targets contained in the Adult Care Directorate Plan 2020/2021, Children’s
Services Directorate Plan 2020/2021 and Public Health Directorate Plan
2020/2021.

Page 3

Resolved:
That the report be noted.
56

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
Resolved:
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration
of the following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.
Reason for the Decision:
Should the press and public remain during the debate on the following item,
there may be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under
Parts 1 and 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

57

ROCHDALE ACADEMY SEN SCHOOL
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Children’s Services
which advised that in 2019 Rochdale had been awarded one of the new
central government Special Educational Needs (SEN) schools. As part of this
process the Department for Education (DfE), required the Children’s Services
to abide by cost stipulations with regards to delivery of the new school.
To continue further with delivery of the school the DfE required approval from
Rochdale Council for expenditure related to the costs and the approval for
provision of an associated ‘Section 151’ letter to formalise the payment
agreement. This meant that the only alternative to the new SEN school funded
by the DfE, would be a Council funded new school or increased expenditure
on ‘out of borough’ provision.
The Committee was informed that this report had been presented to the
Cabinet at its meeting hon 26th January 2021, where the recommendations
contained therein, were approved. The recommendations had been presented
as to continue further with delivery of the school the DfE required approval the
Council for expenditure related to the costs and the approval for provision of
an associated ‘Section 151’ letter to formalise the payment agreement.
Resolved:
That the report be noted.

Page 4

Agenda Item 2a

HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Work Programme 2021/2022
The purpose of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee is:To be the responsible Committee for the Council’s health scrutiny function (with the
exception of any referrals to the Secretary of State arising from
statutory consultations being referred to Council for determination); for scrutiny of
Health and Wellbeing (including scrutiny of the Health and Wellbeing Board,
particularly with reference to joint commissioning proposals arising between the
Council and the CCG with regard to health and social care arrangements); and for
scrutiny of partnerships or key contractors: (eg Inspired Spaces), Child and Adult
Social Care Services; Early Help and Schools Services; the Borough’s two
Safeguarding Boards and for the overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and
Directors.
a. To respond to consultation by Cabinet and the Health and Wellbeing Board on
relevant policy development proposals.
b. To scrutinise the in-year performance of relevant Council Services,
partnership bodies and other appropriate bodies, in accordance with the
Council’s Performance Management Framework and against approved
Service Plans, where appropriate.
c. To instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service
performance.
d. To scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by
external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee).
e. To review and scrutinise executive decisions where appropriate to this
Committee in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, which have been
called-in by Members of the Council.
f. To receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives on
outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the Council, where
appropriate.
g. To scrutinise Safeguarding arrangements, including consideration of
Safeguarding Boards’ Annual Reports
h. To commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to relevant
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from such
studies and reviews.
i. To consider Directorate Plans in line with Council Policy.
j. To be the Council body identified to receive issues and reports from Health
Watch
k. To consider, as relevant, reports from the Care Quality Commission as part of
the wider health scrutiny considerations.
l. To receive minutes of the joint health scrutiny bodies.

Page 5

8th July 2021
To consider the Committee’s Work
Programme for 2021/22

Work Programme
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter
2020/2021)
 Children’s Services
 Adult Care Services
 Public Health Service
Link4Life Partnership Agreement
Update and Contract Extension
Shadow System Board

Performance management and
monitoring

Performance management and
monitoring
Presentation on proposals

9th September 2021
To consider the Committee’s Work
Programme for 2021/22

Work Programme
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates (1st Quarter
2021/2022)
 Children’s Services
 Adult Care Services
 Public Health Service
Covid-19 (General update on the
impact of Covid-19 in the Borough
and across the Greater Manchester
footprint)
Social Care Complaints and LGO
referrals – 6 monthly update
Schools Outturn report – 2020/2021
Northern Care NHS Alliance –
Update on service provision

Performance management and
monitoring

Scrutiny of performance

Performance management and
monitoring
Performance management and
monitoring
Scrutiny of performance

25th November 2021
Work Programme

To note the Committee’s Work
Programme for 2021/22

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Adult Care Market Oversight Report -1st
Quarter 2021/222
Pennine Care NHS Trust – Update on
Scrutiny of performance
service provision
Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Boards Scrutiny of performance
for Children and Adults – annual report
2020/2021

Page 6

Link4Life – 6 monthly Performance
Update
Updates from ICB/Systems Board

Performance management and
monitoring
Performance management and
monitoring

24th February 2021
Work Programme
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
SUNRISE Team – Annual Report
2020/2021
Directorate Plan Updates (3rd Quarter
2021/2022)
 Children’s Services
 Adult Care Services
 Public Health Service
Adult Care Market Oversight Report –
3rd Quarter 2021/2022
SEND update
Updates from ICB/Systems Board

Update
Performance monitoring and
management
Performance management and
monitoring

Performance management and
monitoring
Performance monitoring and
management
Performance management and
monitoring

Items to be scheduled:
a. RBC Adoption Service – Annual Report
b. North West Ambulance Service – presentation on service provision for the
Rochdale Borough

Page 7

Agenda Item 6
Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

MeetingDateLegal
Cabinet Member for
Getting A Good Start,
Cabinet Member for
Healthy Lives, Cabinet
Member for Social Care
and Ageing Well
Ben Jorgensen

Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2020-21:
Quarter 4 Performance Update
Executive Summary
1.

To report progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st January – 31st March 2021)
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Adult Care Directorate
Plan 2020-21, Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21 and Public
Health Directorate Plan 2020-21.
Recommendation

2.

Members are asked to review the information contained within the report
and the appendices.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework,
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be
reported to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each
quarter.

3.1

The Quarter 4 progress reports for the Adult Care Directorate, Children’s
Services and Public Health Directorate are attached at Appendix 1, 2 and 3
respectively. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in
accordance with the following criteria:

3.2

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control
Green: Action completed by the target date
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

Page 8

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red,
amber or purple.
3.3

Please can it be noted to the committee that some directorate plan actions
have been delayed, with some work being paused, due to the unforeseen
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic over the past 12 months. Some actions
may be carried over into the directorate plans for next year where they will
be continued to be monitored until completion.

Key Points for Consideration
4.

Adult Care Directorate Plan 2020-21 Progress

Performance Overview
4.1

62% (8) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 are now
complete. 39% (5) actions are not fully complete and the action due date
has now passed. The chart below shows the overall performance of the
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 4.

4.2

The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due dates have passed
(Amber) relate to:
 Clarify and embed delivery of reablement and support service based
on “Good help “ principles
 Implement system improvements in respect of commissioning
information and payments
 The Mental Health Investment Standard is effectively commissioned
across the CCG and the LA.
 Secondary and specialist services for people with LD and / or Autism
will be reviewed to ensure our offer is fully integrated between Health
& Social Care

Page 9

 The ASC Commissioning Programme Structure will be updated to
deliver a comprehensive range of cross cutting themed projects
related to the 5-year Accommodation with support strategy

4.3

Quarter 4 Summary

4.4

Mutually agreed pathways and referral processes, with providers and
stakeholders, aligned to recovery and reablement have been put in place as
part of the action to clarify and embed delivery of reablement and support
service based on good help principles. Substantial linkage with a number of
key agencies and stake holders have been established. Future engagement
and service development plans are in progress/pending new model. It is
proposed to joint work more closely with strategic housing following their
restructure with early discussions taking place.

4.5

There has been the continued promotion of digital solutions with the
development of a work stream within the assistive technology board; this is
to support the change in culture around how we provide services moving
from an analogue to digital approach where possible. There are plans in
place to recruit a digital inclusion officer from next year.

4.6

The action to review secondary and specialist services for people with
learning difficulties and/or autism to ensure our offer is fully integrated
between Health & Social Care will be carried over to next years’ business
plan. The delay is due to the impact of the pandemic on the service.
The development of projects as part of the ASC commission programme
structure to improve services for: Older people (3 projects), Working age
adults with long term conditions (6 projects) and People with complex &
chaotic lives (6 projects) has been partially paused due to Covid-19.
Projects developed have now moved into implementation, some of which
feature in 21/22 business plan.

4.7
Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21 Progress
4.8

Performance Overview
33% (3) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 have now
been complete. 67% (6) actions are not fully complete and the action due
date has now passed. The chart below shows the overall performance of the
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 4.

Page 10

4.9
The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due dates have passed
(Amber) relate to:
 Implement the School Improvement Strategy to improve pupil
achievement at all key stages
 Provide sufficient school places for all children within the Borough
 Continued implementation and embedding of the SEND (Special
Educational Needs/ Disabilities) reforms
 Workforce stability is maintained and strengthened
 Safely stabilise and reduce the number of children in need of
protection and children cared for through embedding innovative
approaches
 Children’s Services lead proactive relational practice within
partnership arrangements

4.10 Quarter 4 Summary
As part of the action to provide sufficient school places for all children within
the Borough the Council is supporting the delivery of two secondary free
schools. In Middleton the department for education are still awaiting
government sign off to allow Edgar Wood Academy's 2021 opening, this is
expected post planning decision April 2021. In the Pennines the department
of education indicate that site difficulties may mean that opening is delayed
to September 2023. The Council has made it clear the need for a
4.11 contingency if necessary.
All early help and early years services have now been integrated under the
umbrella of the Family Service Model with Children’s Centres and Locality
teams merging, becoming co-terminus and delivering a whole family
approach. In the Pennine locality this includes further work with the Place
team considering a whole system Children’s and Adults approach through
the Pennine Co-operative Place Partnership. The parenting offer has been
reviewed and a new blended offer implemented through virtual and face to
face delivery on a needs led basis, evolving from timetabled term time
courses to ensure interventions respond to family need. Parenting and
relational programmes have been integrated and are co-ordinated by a
specific team, and there are currently 7 evidenced based programmes
available for families with children of all ages. A consistent virtual and face
to face covid family offer is in place at a locality level to respond to the
current needs of families, this will be reviewed as restrictions change with
4.12 lessons learnt from this period influencing the family offer going forward.
The first anti-racist training has taken place and further delivery
commissioned following feedback from participants. Mandatory training
sessions commence in May for all staff. The BAME focus Group continues

Page 11

to meet providing feedback to the service. Further L&D activity is planned in
relation to staff who work directly with our service users. Specific support to
aspiring leaders from BAME backgrounds is also being offered as part of
corporate leadership programme. It is anticipated that this action will
continue to be relevant in 2021/22.
4.13
The sub-action to revise and review the Rochdale Safeguarding Children
Partnership infrastructure in order to embed relational practice across the
partnership is still ongoing. The process to move to more relational case
conferences has commenced. The IROs engaged in 2 development days
and more had been planned in January 2021. It has proved to be impossible
to introduce a new style of working during the COVID pandemic as the new
style needs face to face interaction and training to be effective .There is a
full action plan being presented to SLT in March 2021 and a variety of
planning meetings and discussions will be taking place with a plan to move
to the full new system in April 2022. The required steps to introduce this new
system and the development of the new style case conferences involving
the full children's safeguarding Partnership is being presented to SLT in
4.14 March 2021 for implementation throughout 2022.
The implementation of a contextual safeguarding approach to understand
and respond to young people’s experiences of significant harm beyond their
families is still ongoing. This is an area of work that has been delayed as a
result of the pandemic. Despite this the Safeguarding Partnership did hold a
Contextual Safeguarding Conference broken down into 4 virtual sessions
that were very well received by the partners who took part. More partners
have received training to raising awareness of contextual safeguarding. Next
is to draft a neighbourhood assessment to start working on the strategy of
what we are going to do to improve the outcomes for children and young
people in the area of focus.

Public Health & Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2019-20 Progress
4.15 Performance Overview
11% (1) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 have now
been complete. 89% (8) actions are not fully complete and the action due
date has now passed. The chart below shows the overall performance of the
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 4.

Page 12

4.16
The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due dates have passed
(Amber) relate to:
 Undertake a review of public health in the context of the new system
architecture
 Development of an Integrated Intelligence Network, bringing together
health and social intelligence across commissioners and providers
 Development of an Environmental Sustainability and Public Health
Plan to agree and deliver Public Health priorities and actions around
the sustainable development goals
 Lead on the development and implementation of a system wide
prevention strategy
 Maximise the workplace health setting approach to reach and
improve the wellbeing of our health and care workforces
 Recommission the Sexual Health Service to ensure improved access
to services and alignment to GM vision
 Provide public health leadership for managing the Covid-19 outbreak
and health protection priorities
 Further develop the next phase of voluntary sector infrastructure
support
4.17 Quarter 4 Summary
As part of the action to develop an Integrated Intelligence Network, bringing
together health and social intelligence across commissioners and providers;
work unfortunately has been delayed due to the response to Covid-19. A
network approach has been undertaken to support COVID intelligence,
however, this needs further work to develop from a non-COVID perspective.
Joint working has taken place to support the COVID work, however, work
still needs to be undertaken to bring together a network more formally and a
4.18 work plan to support that. This has been incorporated into next year’s plan.
Due to COVID related delays in the work stream, the prevention strategy is
still in development. The current aim is to have a final joint strategy agreed
by September 2021. As above, the work to update key services (i.e. health
improvement, vulnerable adults) is running parallel to the wider strategy
4.19 development and will be completed during 21/22.
Work regarding providing public health leadership for managing the Covid19 outbreak and health protection priorities is ongoing. The three fixed Local
Test sites are running efficiently and have capacity required across
Rochdale for PCR testing for those with symptoms. Lateral flow testing
(LTF)/rapid antigen testing is being offered to all workforces that can’t work
from home and have no symptoms. This will be delivered through
asymptomatic testing sites (ATS) based in Rochdale, Heywood, Middleton
and Littleborough. In addition roving testing units (RTU) will support testing

Page 13

in schools, areas of high prevalence and large work places who have seen a
4.20 high number of cases throughout the pandemic.
The Covid -19 vaccination programme has been mobilised. NHSE leads the
national programme and has commissioned a number of NHS providers to
deliver the programme. Public health has worked with stakeholders from
across the local system to coordinate and support the programme. This
includes work on supporting operational standards and delivery,
prioritisation, assurance processes, intelligence, communications and
4.21 community engagement.
The action to further develop the next phase of voluntary sector
infrastructure support is ongoing. The upscaling of voluntary sector element
of the whole system prevention offer across all 6 neighbourhoods continues
to take place. The re-profiling of timescales has meant that the upscaling
aim linked to the prevention review will slip into next year. However a large
proportion of the COVID related funding we are receiving is being
channelled through and to the CVS sector in the borough. ICB have agreed
a two year extension to the Action Together contract which has been
formally issued. The service will be heavily involved in developments going
forward and are integral in the COVID response.
4.22 Alternatives Considered
Not applicable

Costs and Budget Summary
5.

None

Risk and Policy Implications
6.

None

Consultation
7.

Not required

Background Papers

Place of Inspection

Page 14

8.

Appendix 1 - Adult Care
Directorate Plan 2020-21 Q4

Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale OL16 1XU

Appendix 2 – Children’s
Services Directorate Plan 202021 Q4
Appendix 3 – Public Health
Directorate Plan 2020-21 Q4

For Further Information Contact:

Ben Jorgensen, ,
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 15

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

AC2001 Support the delivery of integrated neighbourhood working

31 March 2021



Ref.

Due

Status

Name

Status

% Complete

100%
%
Complete

To further develop a partnership approach and work to a set of guiding principles which
31 March 2021

100%
evidence good neighbourhood working
Work is actively in progress with the primary care network. The Pennine cooperative partnership is becoming a “cell” of good help neighbourhood approach. Actively
linking with housing with a task and finish group working together as part of neighbourhood approach. Work will continue with the new evolving neighbourhood
mandate which is part of the LCO project – which will be fed into the directorate plan for 21/22.
AC2001.A

AC2001.B

To have two co-located Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INT) /Neighbourhood teams

31 March 2021



100%

Page 16

Two co-located Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INTs) have now achieved co-location in Brook House and Globe House, therefore completing this action. Further colocation efforts are on track, and co-location at the Phoenix Centre should be achieved at Feb 21.
AC2001.C

To initialise formal links with Pennine Care and Mental health services on a neighbourhood
level

31 March 2021



100%

Designated links with each neighbourhood team is now in place, and a plan has been produced to identify co-terminus working. This action is now complete.
AC2001.D

Delivery and administration of a neighbourhood data set in place

30 September 2020



100%

95%

The first iteration of a Health & Social Care joint dataset (Neighbourhood Dataset) will be on-line from 15th October (re September data).

AC2002 Clarify and embed delivery of reablement and support service based on “Good help “
principles

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2002.A

New Service offer for people with Mental Health /Substance/CSE issues/contextual
(transitional) safeguarding issues

30 April 2020



Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 8

%
Complete
100%

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

In place and Complete
AC2002.B

Clear pathways in and out of service and linkage to ALLIS case working/records system

30 September 2020



100%

30 September 2020



100%

In place and Complete
AC2002.C

Linkage and synergy with other providers understood

Mutually agreed pathways and referral processes with providers and stakeholders aligned to R & R are in place. R & R leaflet is in progress. We have developed
substantial linkage with a number of key agencies and stake holders. We propose to improve linkage and synergy with PCN’s and the Living Well Model. Data
performance reporting produced quarterly and weekly resilience reporting in place. Currently part of wider prevention review in the council and may change some focus
in 21/22.
AC2002.D

Engagement and coproduction for future service development plans developed

31 March 2021



80%

Page 17

Future engagement and service development plans in progress/pending new model. We propose to joint work more closely with strategic housing following their
restructure, early discussions taken place. We propose to expand our linkage with undertaking prison in reach work- linked to MAPPA/ prison release and sourcing
appropriate timely housing for those in the criminal justice system.

AC2003 Implement system improvements in respect of commissioning information and payments

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2003.A

Implement payment cards for cash budgets

31 March 2021



100%

31 March 2021



100%

94%
%
Complete

Complete and in place
AC2003.B

Day care payments to providers based on actuals rather than assessed

Providers are now uploading actuals to the Provider Portal for payment ( a separate process is in place to pay up to the assessed as a supplement)

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 8

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

31 March 2021



100%

31 March 2021



70%

31 March 2021



100%

AC2004 Improved services to people with a mental health issue including dementia

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2004.A

Develop 5 year AMHP strategy (approved mental health professional)

31 March 2021



100%

31 March 2021



100%

AC2003.C

Individual Service Fund arrangements are to also be on the provider portal

ISF’s are now removed and re-categorised as managed budgets.
AC2003.D

Review and improvements to the respite payment system (payment to providers)

ICB agreed to defer respite rates changes to September 2021.
AC2003.E

To have 50% of users to be paying charges for home care via a direct debit arrangement

The latest position is that 64% of non-residential income is now paid by direct debit.

Page 18

100%
%
Complete

The 5 year AMHP strategy is now in place, and work is currently being undertaken regarding implementation.
AC2004.B

Establish dementia operations /tactical group to enact dementia strategy around dementia
friendly communities

Task group set up and enacting elements as far as we’re aware of GM plan, we have also set up an action group to implement a number of actions to comply with the
GM Dementia United Strategy.

AC2005 To provide options for synergy of current provider services with Adult Social Care Operations

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 8

30 September 2020



100%

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2005.A

Review of current structure around delivery services and develop option plan for future
delivery

30 September 2020



% Complete

%
Complete
100%

A review or the current structure has been completed, and public consultation re the proposed structure has been undertaken. A staff consultation is now underway.



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2006.A

Work around development of extra care schemes and streamline accommodation panel
activity in line with corporate strategic direction

30 November 2020



Page 19

AC2006 Work to both help integrate new housing schemes into neighbourhoods and assist enact phase
30 November 2020
2 of “show and tell “work within strategic housing

100%
%
Complete
100%

The first of new schemes (River Beal) is now live. The accommodation panel is active and working, and the future schemes, e.g. Cherwell flats, have been slightly
postponed due to covid into the next final financial year. Directorate approval for accommodation panel has been sought and approved.

AC2007 To work towards a new approach to the joint management (health and social care) of people
with complex issues around autism and Learning difficulties

30 September 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2007.A

To produce an options paper for director approval for a way forward in terms of service
delivery (being based on the premise we intend to maximise how we align /integrate both
health and Social care elements of service delivery)

30 September 2020



In consultation phase with provider Pennine Care, and workshop has been set-up to progress the work.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 8

100%
%
Complete
100%

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

AC2008 To change the culture around how we provide services form an analogue to a digital approach
wherever possible with an emphasis on quality improvement

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2008.A

To promote digital solutions in line with the corporate strategy

31 March 2021



% Complete

100%
%
Complete
100%

We continue to promote digital solutions and have developed a workstream within our assistive technology board to take this forward. There are plans in place to recruit
a digital inclusion officer from next year.
AC2008.B

To embed QI approaches within the business planning cycle

31 March 2021



100%

Page 20

Each team in ASC has a QI project, being monitored via quality improvement board. The expectation is this will be a concurrent feature in our team plans and directorate
plans going forward. Project management/ QI training has been offered and undertaken by a wide range of staff within ASC

AC2009 The Mental Health Investment Standard is effectively commissioned across the CCG and the
LA.

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2009.A

Produce a report setting out our Commissioning intentions for 20/21 & 21/22 to comply with
the MH Investment Standard / reflect the LTP objectives and support the ambitions of the LCO
and neighbourhood Mental Health offer

30 November 2020



97%
%
Complete
100%

A Mental Health Integration Plan is being produced and is planned to be shared with ICB by Dec 20. This will feed into the work regarding setting out Commissioning
Intentions. Report will be included in the Commissioning Intentions report which has been shared with ICB, and is due for a decision in Oct 20.
AC2009.B

Review grant funded service arrangements (MIND/Alzheimer’s’) & recommission the service

31 March 2021



100%

30 September 2020



100%

Due to the impact of Covid-19, we had paused business and usual and we will have a plan in place by the end of Q2
AC2009.C

Deliver a project to embed personal health budgets for people on s117

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 8

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

Local system support the delivery of PHBs for individuals on S117.
AC2009.D

Produce a policy & procedure to meet the CCG’s Ml H Act s140 responsibilities to make
available sufficient acute MH Act beds to meet the needs of the population

31 December 2020



90%

100%

Has been drafted and meeting on 31st March 2021 to finalise and will be taken to SMT and CCG policy structure for completion in 21/22 Q1.

31 December 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2010.A

To produce a project plan that identifies the key issues and business requirements that is
evidence driven

30 September 2020



100%

31 December 2020



100%

31 December 2020



100%

AC2011 Secondary and specialist services for people with LD and / or Autism will be reviewed to
ensure our offer is fully integrated between Health & Social Care

31 December 2020



50%

Ref.

Due

Status

Page 21

AC2010 Develop a progressive fee structure that supports more in borough provision for people across
the client group spectrum

%
Complete

A project plan has been produced and is being monitored.
AC2010.B

Conclude market engagement with providers, service users and assessment teams to better
understand issues and barriers

Fee consultation nearing completion. LD Day Service review not completed. Supported Living programme ongoing.
AC2010.C

Develop fee setting differential rates based on market engagement

Residential care banding model shared with providers via fees consultation process.

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 8

%
Complete

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

AC2011.A

Due Date

An integrated Health & Social Care specification for complex learning disabilities will be
produced

Status

% Complete

31 December 2020



50%

30 September 2020



50%

30 April 2020



100%

Carried over to 21/22 business plan.
AC2011.B

We will improve our diagnostic & treatment service for people with autism by working with the
current provider to deliver improved outcomes

Carried over to 21/22 business plan.

AC2012 A 5-year Accommodation with support Strategy will be published

Page 22

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2012.A

A series of Commissioning Statements will be published – these will include information that
helps practitioners understand what is in the market

30 April 2020



%
Complete
100%

Complete – signed off at ICB at the end of May. Published with a legal caveat to rerun the data by the end of July to understand the impact of covid
A Market Position Statement will be published. This will be a provider-facing document with
AC2012.B
key information in it about the market, which will inform providers of our commissioning
30 April 2020

100%
intentions
Completed and published MPS along with accommodation support strategy. Published with a legal caveat to rerun the data by the end of July to understand the impact
of covid

AC2013 The ASC Commissioning Programme Structure will be updated to deliver a comprehensive
range of cross cutting themed projects related to the above strategy

31 December 2020



Ref.

Due

Status

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 8

80%
%
Complete

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

Development of 15 projects to improve services for: Older people (3 projects), Working age
adults with long term conditions (6 projects) and People with complex & chaotic lives (6
31 December 2020

80%
projects)
Partially paused due to Covid-19. Projects developed have now moved into implementation, some of which feature in 21/22 business plan. In delivery and BAU for some
projects.
AC2013.A

Page 23
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 8 Of 8

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

%Complete

CS2001 Implement the School Improvement Strategy to improve pupil achievement at all key stages

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2001.A

Embed Communication and Language strategy within the 50 settings by revisiting training,
monitoring, implementation and impact

31 March 2021



100%

31 March 2021



75%

31 March 2021



100%

90%

% Complete

This is embedded in 58 settings.
CS2001.B

Extend the EYFS CLL strategy to the remaining 18 primary settings and into year 1 classes

10 schools are still to begin their involvement.

Page 24

CS2001.C

Develop a 2021 leavers catch up strategy

Work with the Secondary curriculum deputies group has continued. Schools are reviewing their curriculum offer to ensure breadth of curriculum offer and interventions.
Whilst the focus of this work has had to change this has been completed
CS2001.D

To strengthen the support and challenge to under-performing secondary settings by ensuring
robust data conversations

31 March 2021



100%

31 March 2021



100%

This work has been completed.
CS2001.E

Deployment of School Improvement Partners establishing bespoke support plans

Initial KIT conversations have been started for the new school year and SIPs have been deployed. By November 2020, this process will have been completed and bespoke
plans for priority schools will be established.
Complete SEND Peer Reviews in all secondary schools to ensure that the teaching is wellCS2001.F
matched to the needs of SEN support pupils to enable improved progress through key stage 3
31 March 2021

40%
and 4
This has been taken out of the plan due to the further lockdown.
CS2001.G

To ensure all primary schools have participated within a SEND peer review or a SEND audit of
practice focusing on pupils’ emotional mental health of pupils

Audit of practice relating to MHIE has taken place in all schools.
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 8

31 March 2021



100%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Work with schools and partners to commence the implementation of the recommendations
from the Inclusion Strategy

Status

%Complete

31 March 2021



100%

31 March 2021



100%

CS2002 Provide sufficient school places for all children within the Borough

31 March 2021



73%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2002.A

Review of the availability of primary and secondary school places and negotiation of additional
places with schools and DfE for 2021

31 March 2021



100%

31 March 2021



60%

CS2001.H

Implementation of the recommendations now in progress.
CS2001.I

To work with schools to determine intervention and catch-up strategies to minimise the impact
of Covid19 on educational outcomes

This has continued to be prioritised in quarter 4.

Page 25

% Complete

Meeting held with DfE March 2021 to provide information on forecasted place demands/requirements to 2025.
CS2002.B

Support the delivery of two secondary Free Schools which are required in the Borough for 2021
and 2022 respectively, the Council has approved release of sites for these

Middleton - DfE still awaiting Government sign off to allow Edgar Wood Academy's 2021 opening, this is expected post planning decision April 2021. Pennines - DfE
indicate that site difficulties may mean that opening is delayed to September 2023. LA has made clear the need for a contingency if necessary.
CS2002.C

Commence the development of 75 place Free Special School (ASC) with DfE and New Bridge Trust

31 March 2021



60%

31 March 2021



100%

DfE indicate potential opening date of September 2023.

CS2003 Realign early help, relational and school readiness services on an integrated locality footprint to
ensure effective mainstreaming of the Family Service Model

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 8

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

%Complete

Ref.

Name
Due
Status
% Complete
Design a Family Offer to be delivered across localities following the review of Early Help and
CS2003.A
Early Years Services that when implemented will deliver relational and integrated early help,
31 March 2021

100%
parenting and school readiness
All early help and early years services have now been integrated under the umbrella of the Family Service Model with Children’s Centres and Locality teams merging,
becoming co- terminus and delivering a whole family approach. In Pennine locality this includes further work with the Place team considering a whole system Children’s
and Adults approach through the Pennine Co-operative Place Partnership. The parenting offer has been reviewed and a new blended offer implemented through virtual
and face to face delivery on a needs led basis, evolving from timetabled term time courses to ensure interventions respond to family need. Parenting and relational
programmes have been integrated and are co-ordinated by a specific team, and there are currently 7 evidenced based programmes available for families with children of
all ages. A consistent virtual and face to face covid family offer is in place at a locality level to respond to the current needs of families, this will be reviewed as restrictions
change with lessons learnt from this period influencing the family offer going forward.
Youth Service to complete community profiles/needs analysis based on young people’s needs in
31 January 2021

100%
the community
Completed, but with constant reviewing taking place. This will be ongoing into 21/22 due to constantly changing covid-19 restrictions which are impacting within the
community. Resulting in the need for the borough wide profile to be reviewed and amended before being finalised.
CS2003.B

Page 26

Improved communication of support programmes to school to extend high quality youth
provision

31 January 2021



100%

CS2004 Continued implementation and embedding of the SEND (Special Educational Needs/ Disabilities)
reforms

31 January 2021



83%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS200A.A

Collaboratively develop the five year SEND Support Strategy

31 January 2021



CS2003.C

The work has been extended into the next financial year and is being developed with links in schools in each township.

% Complete
70%

NCB have been commissioned to complete work on the JSNA. Monthly LA SEND data scorecard now fully operational. SEND strategy has been delayed pending JSNA
completion. However this delay has allowed the opportunity for the collaborative work on the joint SEND Outcomes work being completed in partnership with Council for
Disabled children. This work commenced on the 2nd March.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 8

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

%Complete

Increase the effective use of SEND Support Plans to embed the graduated response to reduce
30 December 2020

80%
need/dependency on EHCP
SEND Support plan developed - Now taking it a step further. Joint session with SENCOs planned on 18th March to link the SEND Support plan into the Request for
Education Health Care Needs Assessment - Outcome of that session will be presented to the SEND Head Teacher Group on the 31-03-21 and if ratified will be formally
launched in April.
CS2004.B

CS2004.C

Re-design the formulation of EHCPlans with Health, Care and Education to ensure that the plans
are effective and acted upon

30 November 2020



100%

The new EHCP request have been completed and rolled out. Next steps now which is underway is the revision of the Health and social care EHCP advice
CS2004.D

Implement a Joint Health/Social Care and Education Quality assurance EHCP framework

30 September 2020



90%



90%

Joint QA took place with DMO in Feb - revising QA template - Current discussion with the NW DMO/DSC group re their QA format

Page 27

Extend the current unassessed short break offer to increase impact

CS2004.F

Commence the Preparing for Adulthood training offer across all agencies

CS2004.E

30 December 2020

Extension of Universal short break has been suspended re COVID restriction - However we have adapted a flexible approach Short break budget allocation to best meet
need throughout the Covid Lock down period to ensure ongoing support – We have been success in getting an increase in short break funding via GM which has enable us
to begin the commissioning of a ASC girls group.
30 December 2020



70%

CS2005 Improve the quality and integration of age related assessments, and ensure continued sufficient
childcare across the borough following the impact of Covid 19

31 March 2021



100%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2005.A

Digitisation of Early Years assessments through the GM Early Years App in partnership with
Northern Care Alliance and in line with the GM digitisation strategy

31 March 2021



Rochdale individual training programme has been collaborative developed with training to commence May.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 8

% Complete
100%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

%Complete

Digitalisation of ASQ assessments went live in September 2020 for Rochdale and Bury, the first nationally. Following the success of this, Rochdale have agreed to also
digitise WellComm assessments.
Review and update service strategy to ensure childcare sufficiency in response to covid.
CS2005.B
Increased childcare brokerage; communication with childcare providers; implement a flexible
30 July 2020

100%
funding approach
Service Procedures updated with new offer to providers in place, additional brokerage process in place and being provided, covid funding approach implemented for
sector. Currently an excess of childcare places, which will be monitored in terms of take up of free entitlement.

CS2006 Workforce stability is maintained and strengthened

31 March 2021



Ref.

Due

Status

Name

96%

% Complete

Page 28

Provide more development opportunities for employees from black and minority ethnic
31 March 2021

90%
communities
The first anti-racist training has taken place and further delivery commissioned following feedback from participants. Mandatory training sessions commence in May for
all staff. The BAME focus Group continues to meet providing feedback to the service. Further L&D activity is planned in relation to staff who work directly with our service
users. Specific support to aspiring leaders from BAME backgrounds is also being offered as part of corporate leadership programme. It is anticipated that this action will
continue to be relevant in 2021/22.
CS2006.A

Implement the recruitment and retention strategy to reduce the number of children who
31 March 2021

100%
experience a change in social worker
A new approach to recruitment has recently been trialled with limited success. However further work on this is scheduled for early 2021 to continue to keep our
recruitment campaigns competitive. Staff turnover has significantly reduced. Staff turnover has significantly reduced however there continues to be challenges with
recruitment as due to Covid people have been less likely to seek new posts. A new approach has been recommended by the Recruitment and Retention Group which it is
anticipated will increase Rochdale profile as an employer of choice.
CS2006.B

CS2006.C

Establish mechanisms to ensure that staff at every level in the organisation influence strategy
and practice standards

31 March 2021



100%

Well established arrangements are in place which allow staff at all levels in the organisation to contribute to service wide developments, these include individual team
meetings, full service communication events, Advanced practitioners network, Practice Managers meeting and other management meetings. In line with our relational
practice approaches we continue to encourage staff at all levels to contribute.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 8

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

CS2007 Safely stabilise and reduce the number of children in need of protection and children cared for
through embedding innovative approaches

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2007.A

Further develop No Wrong Door / ACT to: Support children edging towards care to live
successfully in the community, support children in care to live in family placements, promote the
safeguarding of adolescents, enabling them to have security in their care

31 March 2021



%Complete

90%

% Complete
100%

Working model for NWD has now been implemented and staff across the service are working towards the key philosophies associated with the model. 4 children
currently living in the NWD residential Hub and the level of outreach support for other children on the edge of care is starting to build. ACT pilot has started with a social
worker in Cared for Children adopting the model whilst holding a reduced statutory caseload. 6 weekly review meetings to evaluate and support the pilot will take place
from January 2021. ACT will be further rolled out into CP/Court – a meeting is planned in the New Year to consider the practical arrangements in relation to this.
CS2007.B

Implement the Strengthening Families (NEST) programme

30 September 2020



100%

Page 29

The NEST team is now fully operational and has started to accept cases both on Pathway A and Pathway B. The team structure is in place and settled. The training package
to be delivered by the Strengthen Practice team is due to commence in October 2020 which will strengthen the operational ethos of the NEST team.
CS2007.C

Embed the Family Services Model to identify and respond to neglect at the earliest stage in
families

31 January 2021



100%

Locality and EHASH pathways completed and new service implementation finished. Families First also now providing enhanced step down support for families where
there are long term neglect issues and repeat referrals to CSC.
CS2007.D

Implement a service wide engagement strategy for young people, parents and carers

31 January 2021



50%

Locality and EHASH pathways completed and new service implementation finished. Families First also now providing enhanced step down support for families where
there are long term neglect issues and repeat referrals to CSC.
CS2007.E

Implement and embed the Child First Offender Second Strategy (incorporating the Youth
Violence Strategy and HMIP inspection action plan)

31 January 2021



100%

CFOS Partnership YJ Plan reviewed at December YJ Partnership Board. All actions on track for completion in timescales. New performance YJ card developed to better
track CF outcomes. 2020/21 SYV Plan agreed & signed off by DCS. Delivery has commenced with performance framework for reporting impact. SYC across Bury &
Rochdale for under 18's has reduced between year ending June 2019 & year ending June 2020.(YJB data) showing positive impact of SYV Plan 19/20

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 8

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

%Complete

CS2008 Secure permanence for more children, ensuring there are sufficient local placements and choice
where children need to be cared for / adopted

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2008.A

Implement the sufficiency strategy

31 March 2021



100%

31 March 2021



100%



100%

100%

% Complete

Sufficiency Strategy has been finalised and PDF version now available on the Council Website.
CS2008.B

Implement Project fostering to restore in-house fostering services to a position of growth. In
particular implement: Mocking Bird, PACE practice model, Secure Base, supported lodgings
provision

Use of In-house foster carers has remained consistently above 290 throughout Q4 with no increase in use of external placements.

Page 30

CS2008.C

Implement the Permanence Strategy 2019/20

31 December 2020

Permanence Panel Terms of Reference agreed at SMT and SLT. Permanence panel is now in place and is receiving long term fostering matches, SGO agreements including
financial support, agreement of care plans for children in care proceedings. Permanence Panel review will take place at the end of March 2021.
Review and embed the functions of the Post Order & Permanence Team to achieve success for
31 October 2020

100%
children living with their family in the community
POPT continues to be developed, Agency Practice Manager has been in post since November 2020. SGO data has been cleansed and training is being provided on the use
of the SGO/ SGS LCS pathway. Permanent recruitment is needed as the team is predominately staffed with agency staff. Team profile has been created and is being
considered in performance clinics. Transfer Policy has been updated to include POPT this is out for consultation with other Heads of Service.
CS2008.D

CS2009 Children’s Services lead proactive relational practice within partnership arrangements

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2009.A

Revise and review the Rochdale Safeguarding Children Partnership infrastructure in order to
embed relational practice across the partnership

31 December 2020



Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 8

50%

% Complete
50%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

%Complete

The process to move to more relational case conferences was commenced. The IROs engaged in 2 development days and more had been planned in January 2021. It has
proved to be impossible to introduce a new style of working during the COVID pandemic as the new style needs face to face interaction and training to be effective .There
is a full action plan being presented to SLT in March 2021 and a variety of planning meetings and discussions will be taking place with a plan to move to the full new
system in April 2022. The required steps to introduce this new system and the development of the new style case conferences involving the full children's safeguarding
Partnership is being presented to SLT in March 2021 for implementation throughout 2022.
CS2009.B

Implement a Contextual Safeguarding approach to understand and respond to young people’s
experiences of significant harm beyond their families

31 March 2021



50%

This is an area of work that has been delayed as a result of the pandemic. Despite this the Safeguarding Partnership did hold a Contextual Safeguarding Conference
broken down into 4 virtual sessions that were very well received by the partners who took part. More partners have received training to raising awareness of contextual
safeguarding. Next is to draft a neighbourhood assessment to start working on the strategy of what we are going to do to improve the outcomes for children and young
people in the area of focus.
CS2009.C

Page 31

Support Adult Services to implement a transitional safeguarding response, providing support and
safeguarding beyond 18 years

31 March 2021



50%

This is an area of work for Greater Manchester that Rochdale has supported as the only council with a dedicated offer to vulnerable adults who have experienced
exploitation. We continue to support the work, but the delay in progress does not have an impact on Rochdale as the offer is already in place.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 8 Of 8

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

PH2001 Undertake a review of public health in the context of the new system architecture

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2001.A

Define where and how the service needs to connect to the wider system to influence local policy
and decision making

30 September 2020



0%

31 March 2021



75%

58%

% Complete

Deferred to 2021/22. This will be against the outbreak plan.
PH2001.B

Develop collaborative leadership at locality level with a key focus on improving population health
through delivery of the locality plan

Page 32

Collaborative leadership continues to be demonstrated across public health, adult care and neighbourhoods through the neighbourhood prevention review. Close
working with Children’s service is also now underway to include them in the development of the prevention strategy.
Define and agree the phased approach to aligning public health commissioning and contracts for
place within the LCO to ensure great integration

31 March 2021



100%

PH2002 Development of an Integrated Intelligence Network, bringing together health and social
intelligence across commissioners and providers

31 March 2021



21%

Ref.

Due

Status

PH2001.C

Commissioning intentions were issued and approved in Q3 by ICB.

Name

% Complete

Describe structure, purpose and function of the intelligence network, signed off by partners across
30 June 2020
the system
This work has been deferred due to the COVID pandemic. It has now been revised and incorporated into next year’s plan.



10%

PH2002.B



50%

PH2002.A

Bring together network, agree ways of working and developing work plan aligned with priorities

30 September 2020

Work has been delayed due to the response to Covid-19. A network approach has been undertaken to support COVID intelligence, however, this needs further work to
develop from a non-COVID perspective. This has been incorporated into next year’s plan.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 7

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

PH2002.C

Due Date

Begin working against work plan, completing at least one piece of joint working

31 January 2021

Status

% Complete



25%

Joint working has taken place to support the COVID work, however, work still needs to be undertaken to bring together a network more formally and a work plan to
support that. This has been incorporated into next year’s plan.
PH2002.D

Reflect on processes, refine approaches, share learning

31 March 2021



0%

31 March 2021



70%

Work will follow the formation of the network and the work programme.

PH2003 Development of an Environmental Sustainability and Public Health Plan to agree and deliver
Public Health priorities and actions around the sustainable development goals

Page 33

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2003.A

Produce an Environmental Sustainability and Public Health Plan

30 June 2020



% Complete
90%

The plan was shared with the Climate Change lead for the council and will be updated every quarter with actions agreed upon at the steering group meeting.
PH2003.B

Agree priorities and joint actions that align with Council’s climate change strategy and CCG’s
actions around sustainability

30 September 2020



90%

Have liaised with the Climate Change and Sustainability Officer for the council and will be regularly attending the Climate Change Steering group which meets every
month.
PH2003.C

Propose developing a steering group to monitor progress on agreed actions

31 December 2020



100%

31 March 2021



0%

Climate Change Steering Group has been formed and led by Councillor Sara Rowbotham.
PH2003.D

Embed sustainability actions in the Public Health Business Plan

Work/update has been delayed due to the response to Covid-19 and will be picked up in the new year.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 7

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

PH2004 Implement the new tiered delivery model tackling tobacco addiction with a focus on reaching
priority groups who have the highest smoking prevalence

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2004.A

Establish and communicate the pharmacy tier 2 offer and pathway through to the specialist
service

31 December 2020



% Complete

100%

% Complete
100%

The pharmacy tier 2 offer is now rolled out across 10 pharmacies working closely with the specialist service to offer the appropriate level of support to meet resident’s
needs.
PH2004.B

Agree the priority groups and planned approach with the provider – needs led approach to
identify smokers considering the impact of COVID-19 and those who often experience the greatest
health inequalities

31 December 2020



100%

31 March 2021



100%

Page 34

Priority groups and refreshed smoking pathway in place.
PH2004.C

Clear recording and reporting to evidence impact and any changes required to strengthen the
model

Recording and reporting in place – health needs assessment underway to understand impact of COVID and any additional model changes required.

PH2005 Lead on the development and implementation of a system wide prevention strategy

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2005.A

Agree the narrative, scope and outputs with key stakeholders across the system recognising the
impact and learning of COVID-19 on our prevention priorities

31 December 2020



87%

% Complete
100%

Work during this quarter has been focused on bringing children’s services into the development of the prevention strategy. A joint workshop is planned on 26th April to
take this forward into 21/22.
PH2005.B

Establish the project team and governance structure

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

31 December 2020

Page 3 Of 7



100%

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

Complete – project team and structure established and governance is routed through leadership.
Develop system wide procurement/development plans including the 2020/21 public health
31 March 2021

100%
prevention commission and options specific to the complex/ tertiary offer
Plans in place for health improvement re-procurement during 21/22. Report will go to ICB to confirm in May 21. Arrangements for complex adults services have been
extended to allow for further development during 21/22.
PH2005.C

PH2005.D

Assess progress, achievements and agree next steps

31 March 2021



50%

Due to COVID related delays in the workstream, the prevention strategy is still in development. The current aim is to have a final joint strategy agreed by September
2021. As above, the work to update key services (i.e. health improvement, vulnerable adults) is running parallel to the wider strategy development and will be
completed during 21/22.

31 March 2021



Ref.

Due

Status

31 December 2020



25%

31 March 2021



0%

PH2007 Recommission the Sexual Health Service to ensure improved access to services and alignment to
GM vision

31 March 2021



81%

Ref.

Due

Status

Page 35

PH2006 Maximise the workplace health setting approach to reach and improve the wellbeing of our
health and care workforces

PH2006.A

Name
Finalise the refreshed Rochdale Borough Workplace Strategy and implementation plan identifying
the targeted workforces (including substance misuse service, mental health service, Rochdale
Infirmary Staff and care homes)

12%

% Complete

Work/update has been delayed due to the response to Covid-19.
PH2006.B

Implement the workplace health and care plan with regular progress reports to the public health
team and Strategic Place Board

Work/update has been delayed due to the response to Covid-19.

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 7

% Complete

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

PH2007.A

Due Date

Undertake a Health Needs Assessment including consultation across the NES

Status

% Complete

31 January 2021



100%

31 March 2021



100%

31 October 2020



75%



50%

75%

Needs assessment is complete.
PH2007.B

Hold a market engagement event for providers to engage in a conversation with providers of
sexual and reproductive health services around the future landscape

A market engagement event has taken place.
PH2007.C

Develop service specification with developmental requirements clearly outlined; consider learning
from Covid-19

Feedback from and EOI posted on the CHEST and advice from STaR procurement has confirmed that the procurement will go ahead.

Page 36

PH2007.D

Procure agreed service specification and award contract

30 November 2020

A procurement timeline is in place and on track. The spec is being written and elements that are GM wide have been completed.

PH2008 Provide public health leadership for managing the Covid-19 outbreak and health protection
priorities

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2008.A

Manage the prevention and outbreak management plan for at a local level

31 March 2021



100%

31 March 2021



100%

% Complete

We are working to the COVID19 Outbreak Plan and have a COVID management plan that is updated as required.
PH2008.B

Provide community infection control advice and guidance across the system

The work is ongoing and is carried out via our IPC duty desk for complex settings. Additional our Public Health team is also responsible for undertaking risk assessments
of settings and events to agree on preventative measures which will limit the further spread of infection. A new Outbreak Identification and Rapid Response (OIRR) will
be set up to support and enhance this work.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 7

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

PH2008.C

Due Date

Lead the development of the local response for Test, Track and Trace

31 March 2021

Status



% Complete

50%

The three fixed LTS sites are running efficiently and have capacity required across Rochdale for PCR testing for those with symptoms. Lateral flow testing (LTF)/rapid
antigen testing is being offered to all workforces that can’t work from home and have no symptoms. This will be delivered through asymptomatic testing sites (ATS)
based in Rochdale, Heywood, Middleton and Littleborough. In addition roving testing units (RTU) will support testing in schools, areas of high prevalence and large work
places who have seen a high number of cases throughout the pandemic. Seventy Military personnel will help support the setup of sites and initial testing until we can
phase them out and replace with our own workforce. Recruitment is underway with over 150 applicants for coordinator and testing assistant roles.
Maintain an infection control and outbreak and incident response for other issues Maintain
31 March 2021

50%
assurance on good immunisation and screening programme uptake
The Covid -19 vaccination programme has been mobilised. NHSE leads the national programme and has commissioned a number of NHS providers to deliver the
programme. Public health has worked with stakeholders from across the local system to coordinate and support the programme. This includes work on supporting
operational standards and delivery, prioritisation, assurance processes, intelligence, communications and community engagement.
PH2008.D

PH2009 Further develop the next phase of voluntary sector infrastructure support

Page 37

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2009.A

Understand the level of investment into the voluntary sector from RBC & CCG

31 March 2021



56%

% Complete
50%

Rebecca Huddleston is leading this as part of the prevention review – update expected at next project board meeting in May.
Work with Action Together to implement the phase 2 prevention offer through ‘test and learn’
31 October 2020

0%
pilot
Planned pilot delayed by COVID. Not likely to occur this year. Action Together are focusing efforts on assisting with the COVID response and distributing grant funds to
the VCSE sector and residents i.e. food solutions network, winter grant, community response fund.
PH2009.B

Upscaling of voluntary sector element of the whole system prevention offer across all 6
31 March 2021

75%
neighbourhoods
The re-profiling of timescales has meant that the upscaling aim linked to the prevention review will slip into next year. However a large proportion of the COVID related
funding we are receiving is being channelled through and to the CVS sector in the borough.
PH2009.C

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 7

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

PH2009.D

Due Date

Work with action together to create a two year plan for 20/21-22 to ensure clear strategy for
growth

31 March 2021

Status



% Complete

100%

ICB have agreed a two year extension to the Action Together contract which has been formally issued. The service will be heavily involved in developments going
forward and are integral in the COVID response.

Page 38
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 7

Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 61

